
Adopted Minutes
Spanish Fork City Council Meeting

July 5,  2005

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Dale R. Barney.  The pledge of allegiance
was led by S. Junior Baker.

Elected Officials Present: Mayor Dale R. Barney, and Councilmembers Paul M. Christensen,
Everett Kelepolo, Seth V. Sorensen and Chris C. Wadsworth.  Councilmember Matthew D.
Barber was absent.

Staff Members Present: David A. Oyler, City Manager; S. Junior Baker, City Attorney; Emil
Pierson, Planning Director; Richard Heap, Engineering/Public Works Director; Kent R. Clark,
Finance Director/Recorder; Seth J. Perrins, Assistant City Manager; Dale Robinson, Parks and
Recreation Director; Dee Rosenbaum, Public Safety Director; Connie Swain, Deputy Recorder.

Citizens: Richard Evans, Duane Hutchings, Leonard Ellis, Red Leifson, Shane Sorensen, Dalton
Sorensen and Whit Hill.

Ordinance 09-05 - An Ordinance Making Minor Amendments to Title 14, Buildings and
Construction

Mr. Baker said two years ago the State changed the building codes which caused the city to
change our city code.  Since the changes were adopted Doug Short, Building Inspector, noticed
minor needed changes to the ordinance.  Mr. Baker reviewed a few of the minor changes.

Councilmember Sorensen made a motion to approve Ordinance 09-05, An Ordinance Making
Minor Amendments to Title 14, Buildings and Construction.  Councilmember Kelepolo
seconded, and the motion passed with a unanimous vote.

Resolution 05-07 - A Resolution Declaring the Balances of the Leland Special Improvement
District Assessment Due and Authorizing the Collection 

Mr. Baker said ten years ago some residents in Leland petitioned for annexation and requested to
connect to city water.  A special improvement district was created and a water line was
constructed to the homes.  The payments set for each resident was based on their individual
usage and benefit.  All but two of the residents have paid their share of the costs. This resolution
authorizes the city to collect the amounts due.   The first option is to collect the funds through a
tax assessment or the second option is to receive authorization to proceed as trustee and foreclose
on the deed.

Mayor Barney said when the service district was created did it state we could collect on unpaid
funds.

Mr. Baker said the collection options were set forth.  He said the city would prefer the tax
assessment option.



Mayor Barney said it is fair for all of those who receive services to pay their share.

Mr. Baker said there were 51 residents who participated and benefitted from the project and all
but two have paid their share.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if the residents were aware of the funds to be paid with the
creation of the special improvement district and the purpose of the funds.

Mr. Baker said they should have been aware of the situation.

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to adopt Resolution 05-07, A Resolution Declaring the
Balances of the Leland Special Improvement District Assessment Due and Authorize the
Collection.  Councilmember Wadsworth seconded, and the motion passed with a unanimous
vote.  

6:15 p.m.- Mr. Baker was excused 

Building Committee Report

Mayor Barney introduced the members of the Building Committee.  They are present to give a
report on their findings concerning an assignment by the City Council to assess the city’s
building needs.  The Chairman of the committee is Duane Hutchings and committee members
are Red Leifson, Richard Evans, Leonard Ellis, and David Lewis.

Mr. Hutchings said several months ago the Building Committee was created and asked to review
the city’s current and future building needs.  The following is a summary of their findings.
• Four areas of focus - Police Department/Court, Senior Center, Recreation Department and

Administration Offices
• Projected growth in 2030

1. Conservative projection 65,000
2. High projection 92,000

• Police facility is a main priority - extreme overcrowding affects productivity
• District Court requesting additional space and a more secure facility
• Senior Center - exceeds capacity and parking during monthly lunches - expansion will be

costly
• Senior Center - could separate the luncheon into two sessions
• Recreation Office - located at Spanish Fork High School and is overcrowded
• Recreation Office expansion - possibly negotiate with the school district for additional

space
• City Administration Building - not designed for expansion and additional space is needed
• Overcrowded facilities cost the city 
• Lack of storage - important records are unprotected 
• Additional storage could be created in a new Police Department/Court facility
• New Police Department/Court facility should be a separate building and would free-up

additional space in the administration building
• Staff will increase as the city continues to grow
• Visited surrounding community offices - proper building design and size by qualified



individuals are imperative
• Property size needed - ten to fifteen acres suggested allowing for a campus type setting

for current and future city office expansions
• Preferred sites were not discussed since negotiations may be ongoing
• The need to move forward is paramount 
• The current administration building has a great deal of sentiment to the citizens - could

become a community or historical center
• Thanks to administration the city is in a good solid financial situation

Mr. Ellis discussed the following recommended financial options.  He said we need to insure
there are proper funds before proceeding.  
• General Fund Cash - to the extent of available funds without depleting reserves
• General Obligation Bond - requires a public vote
• Sales Tax Revenue Bond - a popular method for city projects
• Building Authority - no public vote required
Mr. Ellis said the building authority option is their first recommendation.  It would be a separate
entity from the city but is governed by the city.  It is also recommended that the citizens remain
well informed regardless of the fact that no public vote is required.  Another option is to increase
property taxes.  Using the sales tax revenue bond is the committee’s second recommendation.

Mr. Hutchings said there is an immediate need to acquire land.  The price of land and
construction costs will continue to rise.  The Police Department/Court building is the first
priority.  The State will come in with 2/3 of the cost for this facility.  Additional time for a public
vote option could cost the city valuable time of up to three to five years.  The citizens voted for
the City Council to make important decisions.  The committee recommends the City Council
proceed with the project.  A new administration facility is also a priority.  The project will be
costly, however, it is highly important and the cost will only increase if postponed.   We need a
well designed, functional facility and do not need anything fancy. 

Councilmember Wadsworth asked how Governor Huntsman’s plans to eliminate sales tax on
food will impact the sales tax revenue bond option.

Mr. Hutchings said he did not know the impact it would have.   This is one reason why the
building authority option is a preferred option.  With this sales tax revenue can be utilized but is
not locked in.  The City Council needs to proceed now but keep the public informed.

Mayor Barney said the estimated population growth is very real.  He has seen the population
grow by 11,000 people since he has been in office.  He said this is the first step to keeping up
with growth and he applauded the committee.

Mr. Hutchings said the proposed regional sewer facility would allow for growth westward and
would cause a rapid growth in population when it occurs.

Mayor Barney said we welcome those who want to live here and we want to be prepared for the
future.

Mr. Hutchings thanked the City Council.



Mayor Barney thanked the Building Committee and a round of applause was given.

Councilmember Christensen thanked the committee for the long hours, the effort and the
proposal given.  The city could not have done this without their help.

Councilmember Kelepolo said this is an overwhelming issue.  Anyone who has visited the Police
Department would understand the importance of this project.

Councilmember Sorensen said this information gives the City Council a lot to think about.  We
need to come up with a visionary plan and how to get there.

Councilmember Wadsworth said he is glad to see the diverse background of those serving on the
Building Committee.

Gerald Hill Annexation - 1000 North 300 West (Tabled from June 21, 2005)

Mr. Pierson said this item was tabled based on request by the City Council asking Mr. Hill to
again contact his neighbors and receive additional signatures on the annexation petition.  Mr. Hill
has received the signatures of all property owners within the annexation area with the exception
of the Lockharts.  During most of the previous annexation petitions the majority, if not all,
signatures have been acquired.  The State Code requires only a majority of the property owners to
sign the petition to prevent a few property owners from controlling the majority.

Councilmember Kelepolo asked if there is a building on the Lockhart property.

Mr. Pierson said there is one occupied home on the property.

Councilmember Kelepolo said it appears the requirements have been met.  It does not appear that
an annexation would have any negative impact on those who do not wish to annex.

Mr. Pierson said all of the property owners, including the Lockharts, are on city power.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if Mr. Hill was unable to contact the Lockharts or if they
declined signing the petition.

Mr. Pierson said the Lockharts live out of State.  The city cannot allow one property owner to
hold the others hostage.  Sometimes we have to force an annexation to avoid creating an island.  
Otherwise, the Lockhart property could be dropped from the annexation.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked Mr. Pierson to review the benefit or detriment to the property
owners with the annexation.

Mr. Pierson said the property owners will pay less property taxes in the city verses the county. 
They are already connected to city electric.  They need only one additional city service.   They
will be allowed to participate in city programs without paying nonresident fees.  He can see no
detriment to the property owner.  The zoning received will be similar.  If the property owners
decide to develop in the future there are more options and benefits in the city.  



Councilmember Kelepolo said if they choose to build they have the choice of city garbage
collection, water, etc.  

Mr. Pierson concurred.

Councilmember Kelepolo said he can see no detriment to the property owner with annexation.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if the city has the annexation document with the additional
signatures.

Mr. Pierson presented the document.

Councilmember Christensen said we cannot allow one person to control ten property owners.

Councilmember Sorensen concurred.  The majority want to annex.

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to approve the Gerald Hill Annexation Request. 
Councilmember Sorensen seconded, and the motion passed with a majority vote.  Roll Call:
Councilmembers Christensen, Kelepolo and Sorensen voted aye.  Councilmember Wadsworth
voted nay.

Selling of Property to Charter One (Tabled from June 21, 2005)

Mr. Heap said during the last meeting an appraisal was presented on the section of property
owned by the city within the Charter One development area.  At the request of Mr. Way the item
was tabled to allow him time to receive a second appraisal.

Councilmember Wadsworth expressed a need to recuse himself due to his connection to the
project and he stepped down from his seat during this item only.

Mr. Way said he contacted eight different appraisers and due to the time frame of 30 to 60 days
he did not request the services of any.  He said they do not have that kind of time.  They are
willing to go ahead and purchase the property at the appraised value with a couple of issues to be
considered.  They would like to purchase the property excluding the section of land to be deeded
back to the city for roads.

Mayor Barney asked concerning the ownership the canal company has in the ditch area.

Mr. Way said the canal company has ownership until the ditch is relocated and piped unless they
sign away their rights prior to that time.  The canal company has agreed to the piping and
relocation of the ditch.  Mr. Way said he signed a related agreement last week.  He reviewed the
canal realignment plans.  

Mayor Barney asked if there is enough water pressure in the piped ditch to service the irrigated
properties to the north.

Mr. Way said there is not enough water pressure and he has talked with those property owners. 



The city will have pressurized irrigation in the area soon.  They cannot abandon that ditch until
the property owners have irrigation services available.  He said there is a well on the Charter One
property that can be used to provide irrigation water if needed.  Pressurized irrigation will be
available between August and November of this year.

Mr. Heap said the developers of the River Cove subdivision will be installing the pressurized
irrigation line.

Councilmember Christensen asked for the results if those property owners do not sign off on the
pressurized irrigation service.

Mayor Barney said there is an advantage to the property owners with the pressurized irrigation
service.

Mr. Way said it is evident the City Council will not allow access onto Mill Road.  If they are not
allowed to access Mill Road, which is a public road, they do not want to spend $50,000 to
$60,000 to provide an access.  He said this could be viewed as a taking.

Councilmember Kelepolo said the connection is to allow emergency access.

Mr. Heap said the Public Works Department views the emergency access only as a temporary
situation.  Eventually Mill Road will be improved depending on when property owners on Mill
Road begin to develop their properties.  Right now the road is needed for emergency access.

Mr. Way said early on in the proposal their design included a connection road to Mill Road until
the citizens and the City Council preferred no access onto Mill Road.  This is an expense and a
road which provide no benefit to the development.

Mayor Barney asked if property is developed in the future who will pay for the access from the
school to Mill Road.    

Mr. Way said this appears to be a taking and eliminating the road would allow them to better
design the area.

Councilmember Sorensen asked why this issue was never brought up during the Development
Review Committee or Planning Commission meetings.

Mr. Pierson said through the whole process the connection to Mill Road was for emergencies
only.  He said it could possibly be a 24-foot lane.  The other issue was when or if the Jack B.
Parson’s company was going to be relocated.  They now have a time frame and know the
company is going to relocate in the near future.

Mr. Way said their biggest interest right now is to get the canal piped before the school opens.

Councilmember Kelepolo said the conditions set previously are set until it is changed.  This
access road issue is new and is not an agenda item.  If there are other options it should be
reviewed, but the city should not be responsible for building a connecting road in the future.



Mr. Way said Charter One hired LEI Engineering to put the original plat together.  At
Development Review Committee meeting concerns were expressed concerning the Mill Road
access.  It was determined to allow fire access only.  They originally engineered the access as a
road.

Mayor Barney said the only issue before the council tonight is the purchase of property.  

Mr. Way requested that the City Council talk with the city’s legal council.  Charter One is
spending a lot of money to get rid of an easement and a canal.  They do not wish to purchase land
they will deed back to the city.

Mr. Heap said the area Mr. Way is referring to is less than a tenth of an acre.

Councilmember Kelepolo said he has no problem with consideration for those two road sections.  

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to approve the purchase of property by Charter One in
the amount of $27,500 and give some consideration as far as the two roadways are concerned. 
Councilmember Christensen seconded the motion.

Mr. Way said they have created separate Charter School properties and the entity purchasing the
property is known as Charter School Property 5.  

Councilmember Kelepolo amended the motion accordingly and the motion passed with a
unanimous vote.

Councilmember Wadsworth abstained from voting and rejoined the meeting following the vote.

Sawvel and Associates Electric Study Contract

Mr. Heap said the first part of the Electric Study Contract consists of a consulting services
agreement with phases one and two.  In both phases there are a lot of details given as to the
information needed from the city and the information to be provided to the city.  

Mayor Barney said it sounds like we do the work and they make the decision.

Mr. Heap said the contract states they will compare our rates with two other communities as the
city requires.  The cost is $10,000 for phase one and $15,000 for phase two.  There will be a
charge of $5,200 if they do the presentation.  If additional cities are desired in the comparison,
then additional costs will apply.  

Councilmember Wadsworth asked for UMPA’s feelings about this.

Mr. Heap said he has not talked with UMPA.

Mayor Barney suggested more input before a decision is made.  He said the study appears to be a
waste of funds.



Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to table the Sawvel and Associates Electric Study
Contract until August 2, 2005.  Councilmember Christensen seconded, and the motion passed
with a unanimous vote.

Custodial Contract for Senior Center

Mr. Robinson said requests for proposals were sent out for custodial service of the senior center. 
The five bids received were reviewed by Mr. Robinson, Mayor Barney and Bill Bushman.  The
two lowest bidders were interviewed.  Mr. Robinson recommended approving the bid received
from Sterling R. Webb in the amount of $575.00 per month.  His duties are spelled out in the
contract.  Mr. Bushman will supervise the contractor.  

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if Sterling Webb is related to a city employee.

Mr. Robinson said Sterling Webb is the son of Joyce Webb, Senior Center Director.  The
contract has been approved by Mr. Baker and Mr. Perrins and was prepared by Mr. Baker.  

Councilmember Kelepolo said we have always looked at the lowest bids first.  He said he was
concerned at first but now feels comfortable with Mr. Bushman supervising the contractor.  Also,
Sterling Webb will be a contractor and not a city employee.

Mr. Robinson said the contract can be terminated at any time.

Councilmember Kelepolo asked if Mr. Webb has provided custodial services to the city in the
past.

Mr. Robinson said Mr. Webb filled in at the Senior Center during a transition period between
custodial providers.  Mr. Robinson said he feels comfortable with Sterling Webb providing
custodial services and being supervised by Mr. Bushman.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked Mr. Perrins to review the city’s policy regarding nepotism.

Mr. Perrins said the nepotism policy states family members cannot be hired or supervised by
another family member.  This is not an issue since Mr. Bushman will supervise Sterling Webb.

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to approve the Senior Center Cleaning Contract for
Sterling R. Webb in the amount of $575.00 per month.  Councilmember Sorensen seconded, and
the motion passed with a unanimous vote.  The unanimous vote was confirmed by a roll call
vote.

Other Business

Mr. Perrins said the Chairman of the Fiesta Days Pie Baking Contest is asking if members of the
City Council are able to judge in one of the five categories of the contest to be held on July 23.

Councilmember Christensen said he is baking a pie.



Councilmember Kelepolo said he has a specific diet.

Councilmember Sorensen said he is available to participate in the judging.

Councilmember Kelepolo said during the previous budget hearing several members of the City
Council expressed a need to support essential services and eliminate nonessential services.  He
suggested a work session to determine what those essential services are to be.

Mayor Barney said some things said need to be cleared up.

A work session is to be schedule for July 19 or possibly in August.

Adjournment 

Councilmember Wadsworth made a motion to adjourn.  Councilmember Kelepolo seconded,
and the motion passed with a unanimous vote.  The meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m.

___________________________________
Connie Swain, Deputy Recorder                  

Approved: July 19, 2005


